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MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:    February 18, 2010 
TO:   Historic Preservation Commission 
FROM:  Sandra Youla, Historic Preservation Planner (301-562-3400) 

Clare Lise Kelly, Research & Designation Coordinator, Urban Design and 
Preservation Division/Montgomery County Planning Department 

VIA:   Scott Whipple, Historic Preservation Supervisor 
 
SUBJECT:  Continuation of Worksession on  

Staff Draft Amendment to the Master Plan for Historic Preservation:   
Upper Patuxent Resources (December 2009)  

___________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND AND HPC RECOMMENDATION 
 
On January 20, 2010, the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) held a public hearing and 
worksession to discuss the Staff Draft Amendment to the Master Plan for Historic Preservation:  
Upper Patuxent Resources (December 2009) and the accompanying Staff Report dated January 
13, 2010.  During the public hearing, 16 people testified.  During the worksession, staff made 
presentations on the history of the area and the 31 historic resources under evaluation, including 
29 sites and two districts.   
 
At the January 20 worksession, the HPC voted to recommend removal of resources from the 
Locational Atlas (see below), in concurrence with the staff recommendation.  The motion was 
made by Commissioner Miles and seconded by Commissioner Heiler, with Chairman Rotenstein 
and Commissioners Kirwan, Jester, Rodriguez, Miles, and Heiler in agreement with the motion 
and Commissioners Alderson and Fleming absent.  With this worksession of February 24, it is 
expected that there will be two new commissioners on the HPC. Staff recommends that the 
Commission confirm the decision made on January 20 regarding the recommendation of 
resources to be removed from the Atlas.  
 
The HPC held the public record open until February 16, 2010, asked staff for further information 
to help the HPC formulate its recommendations for designation, and continued the worksession 
to Wednesday, February 24, 2010.  This staff report is written in response to the HPC’s request 
for further information.  
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The HPC found that following resources do not meet any criteria for designation and are 
recommended for removal from the Locational Atlas and Index of Historic Sites: 
 
Resource #         Historic Name          Street Address 

10/3 John Moxley House 28800  Kemptown Road 

10/5 John D. Purdum House 28814  Kemptown Road 

10/18 Burdette-Riddle Farm 27100  Purdum Road 

12/10 James Lauman Farm 22000  Peach Tree Road 

15/2 Matthew Molesworth Farm 13501  Penns Shop Road 

15/3 Rezin Moxley House 3597  Medd Road 

15/6 Becraft Farm 28500  Ridge Road 

15/7 Brown's Tobacco House 28601  Ridge Road 

15/9 Capt Clagett-Hilton  Farm 28055  Ridge Road 

15/12 Thompson-Woodfield Farm 27211/27217  Long Corner Road 

15/14 Mullinix Store Site  Mullinix Mill Road 

15/19 Warthan-Day Farm 8711  Damascus Road 

15/21 John O. Etchison House 25611  Long Corner Road 

15/24 Wilson Warfield Farm 26725  Annapolis Rock Road 

15/26 Fred Watkins Farm 7373  Damascus Road 

15/30 Log Barn Site  24899  Halterman Road                 

 
RESPONSE TO TESTIMONY 
 
Please refer to the Appendix for a summary of public testimony at the HPC Public Hearing on 
January 20, 2010 and staff’s response.   
 
PUBLIC SUBMITTALS 
 
Please refer to the Appendix for additional public submittals received subsequent to the HPC 
Public Hearing on January 20, 2010 and by the close of the record on February 16, 2010. 
 
ISSUES RAISED BY HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSIONERS 
 
Additional Information Posted to the Website 
 
In response to the Commissioners’ request, the following information has been or will be posted 
to the website:   
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• the PowerPoint presentations made at the Historic Preservation Commission Public 

Hearing and Worksession on January 20, 2010, which includes maps of the alternative 
historic district boundaries for Clagettsville and Etchison presented by staff at the HPC 
meeting;   

• photographic inventory of Etchison and Clagettsville; and 
• Maryland Historical Trust Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties forms for Cedar 

Grove and Woodfield Historic Districts.   
 
In addition, this staff report, including appendices, will be posted to the web.    
 
USGS Locational Maps 
 
Commissioners requested locational maps of a uniform scale for each resource under evaluation.  
Please refer to the Appendix for USGS locational maps for each resource. 
 
Environmental Settings 
 
Commissioners requested additional information regarding environmental settings.  Following is 
information specific to each resource proposed for designation as an individual site.  The maps 
referenced below are those found in the Draft Amendment of December 2009. 
 
10/1 Friendship Farm, 28110 Ridge Road        
 The setting is the 89-acre parcel (P200).  In the event of subdivision, the features to be 
preserved include vistas from Ridge Road and Kemptown Road, contributing structures shown in 
the map in the Draft Amendment, Moxley family and slave cemeteries, and the driveway 
approach from the northwest. 

15/1 Parr’s Spring, 4704 Baltimore National Pike      
 The setting is the extent of the boundary markers.  

15/4 Alfred Baker House, 28901 Kemptown Road      
 The setting is parcel P900, being 11.84 acres.  Features to be preserved include the 
dwelling house and spring house with sufficient land to convey the historic context of this 
resource. 

15/5 Molesworth–Burdette Farm, 28600 Ridge Road     
 The setting is the parcel P800, being 137.85 acres.  Features to preserve include 
contributing structures denoted on the map, and the driveway approach from Ridge Road to the 
historic dwelling house.  The property is not subject to subdivision due to an extant agricultural 
easement. 

15/13 Shipley-Mullinix Farm, 27001 Long Corner Road                                                             
 The setting is 90.3 acres (parcel P777).  In the event of subdivision, the features to 
preserve include the contributing buildings shown on the map, and the driveway approach from 
Long Corner Road to the historic dwelling house.  The setting excludes parcel P79. 
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15/16 Clagett-Brandenburg Farm and Tobacco House, 26360 Mullinix Mill Road                     
 The setting is parcel P430, being 82.38 acres.  In the event of subdivision, the features to 
preserve include the contributing structures shown on the map, the driveway approach from 
Mullinix Mill Road, and frontage on Mullinix Mill Road and Long Corner Road that extends at a 
minimum the width and depth of the farmstead complex. 

15/17 Sarah Brandenburg Farm, 26301 Mullinix Mill Road    
           The setting, parcel P800, is five acres, not to be reduced.   
    
15/20 Mt. Lebanon Methodist Protestant Church and Cemetery, 8115 Damascus Road   
 The setting is the parcel P590, being 47,715 square feet.  This setting, which includes the 
church and cemetery, is not to be reduced. 

15/27 Col. Lyde Griffith/Mehrle Warfield Farm, 7305 Damascus Road     
 The setting is 87.61 acres, being parcel P909.  In the event of subdivision, the features to 
be preserved include the historic dwelling house, the dairy barn, the Griffith family cemetery, 
and the vista from Damascus Road. 

15/28 Luther Moore Farm, 7201 Damascus Road        
 The setting is 5 acres, being parcel P489, and is not to be reduced.  

15/71 Chrobot House (Margaret Price House), 24724 Hipsley Mill Road     
 The setting is parcel P100, being 59.4 acres. The parcel is located within the Patuxent 
River State Park.   The features to be preserved are the dwelling house, the spring house, the 
stone foundations, and the driveway approach from Hipsley Mill Road.  

15/73 Basil Warfield Farm, 8201 and 8251 Damascus Road       
 The setting is 91 acres, being parcel P300.  In the event of subdivision, the features to be 
preserved include the farm complex and tenant house shown on the map, including all 
contributing structures, the historic driveway approach to the farmstead from Damascus Road, 
and vistas from Damascus Road.   

15/117 Mt. Lebanon School and Site of Mt. Lebanon ME Church, 26130 Mullinix Mill Road
 The setting is the one-acre lot on which the structure is located (P017).  This setting is not 
subject to reduction. 

 
ADDITIONAL ISSUES FOR INDIVIDUAL RESOURCES 
 
15/1 Parr’s Spring 
 
Chairman Rotenstein noted that because there is no evidence that the original boundary marker 
exists, the property’s objects (D.A.R. monument on land and concrete boundary marker visible 
in pond) are commemorative.  However, as noted in the Maryland Inventory of Historic 
Properties form prepared by staff for this resource, the Department of Natural Resources/ 
Maryland Geological Survey observed the original stone boundary marker (boulder) in place in 
1980.  The stone was located underwater and visible from a pier (no longer standing).  DNR’s 
findings are summarized in its publication entitled Special Publication No. 1 Frederick-
Montgomery-Howard County Boundary Line Resurvey of 1980 (prepared in cooperation with 
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representatives of Frederick County, Montgomery County, and Howard County, 1985).  The 
publication, produced for a resurvey of the 1835 Frederick-Montgomery County boundary, is 
available in the Montgomery County Preservation Office.  The document includes a drawing of 
original stone boundary marker flanked by two smaller stones, under the water (see next page).  
The publication notes:   

 
Inscription and Condition of Stone 
The [Parr’s Spring] stone is submerged several feet beneath the waters of the pond.  The 
poor vantage point, the cloudiness of the water, surface reflections and defraction of light 
prevent one from seeing the presumed “P” reported to be on one of the faces.  A deep 
green coating of mud and/or organic growth masks the rock surface.  The Stone has a 
cement plaque on its top with an inscribed “14.”  The significance of this number 
designation was not fully investigated, but apparently has nothing to do with the 1835 
Survey. 
 
Dimensions of Stone 
Not measured, but estimated to stand about four feet above mud line, and be three feet 
wide by two feet thick. 
 
Other 
In order to properly document this Stone, it would be necessary to use an underwater 
camera as well as physically measure it while submerged.  A very slight agitation of the 
water can stir up clouds of mud which obscures visibility.  This Stone predates, and 
therefore was not actually set as part of the Survey of 1835.  Because its location and 
authenticity is not questioned and is a matter of reliable historic record, it was decided 
that no further documentation would be necessary at this time.  (emphasis added) (pages 
62 and 63) 

 
As noted in the MIHP form, staff called the author of the study, Kenneth A. Schwarz, who is 
now retired, who recalled a modern concrete marker near the pier (not the DAR commemorative 
monument on the lawn).  It is believed to be the current concrete marker that also has a “14” on 
top of it. 
 
Staff has no information to suggest that the original stone boundary marker (boulder) under the 
water has been removed.  Because the pier has been removed, staff could not check.  The age of 
the concrete marker is indeterminate.   
 
The spring and markers are significant historically, and staff recommends designation.  The 
Montgomery-Frederick-Howard County Boundary Line Resurvey of 1980 found that a number 
of boundary stones from 1835 were missing, and additional stones not placed in 1835 were 
located as well.  Designation could help bring recognition and protection to these markers, 
including Parr’s Spring (Resource 15/1).  While researching this resource, staff called other 
jurisdictions, and they seemed unaware of Parr’s Spring and its significance.  Staff notes that all 
eight District of Columbia-Maryland boundary stones (and one site where the stone is missing) 
located in Montgomery County are historic sites designated on the Montgomery County Master 
Plan for Historic Preservation (#35/34).  They are also listed in the National Register for Historic 
Places, have been nominated as National Historic Landmarks, and are the subject of a current 
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multi-jurisdictional transportation enhancement project to inventory, document, evaluate, and 
protect the markers. 
 

    
 

Boundary 
Marker

DAR Marker

15/1 PARR’S SPRING

 

1980 Resurvey of MC-FC-HC Boundary 
by DNR Maryland Geological Survey – 
examining submerged stone from opening 
in pier, which is no longer standing; 
drawing from 1980 Resurvey of stones 
under the water.  Text notes “This stone 
predates and there was not actually set as 
part of the Survey of 1835.   Because its 
location and authenticity is not questioned 
and is a matter of reliable historic record, 
it was decided that no further 
documentation would be necessary at this 
time.” (page 63) 

 

Site plan of 15-1 with photo insets of 
modern concrete marker in water and 
DAR commemorative marker on lawn. 
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15/4 Alfred Baker House 
 
Chairman Rotenstein noted that Alfred Baker’s contributions to local, state, or national history 
fail to distinguish him as a significant individual as defined by the National Register of Historic 
Places.  Chairman Rotenstein quotes a National Register of Historic Places Bulletin:  “a property 
is not eligible if its only justification for significance is that it was owned or used by a person 
who is a member of an identifiable profession, class, or social or ethic group.  It must be shown 
that the person gained importance within his or her profession or group.” 
 
Staff notes firstly that Montgomery County criteria rather than National Register criteria are 
pertinent here and they are somewhat different; and secondly, the resource meets several criteria 
(1a, 1c, 1d) rather than only one.  As explained in the MIHP form and prior staff report, Alfred 
Baker's farmstead and life shed light on the development of Methodism in Maryland, the way of 
life of circuit riders and their families in farming communities, and the spread of the Methodist 
Protestant Church in the Upper Patuxent.  The Upper Patuxent has a strong Methodist heritage -- 
no other denominations existed in the area in the 19th and early 20th centuries, and the area is 
strongly Methodist to this day.  The Alfred Baker House is the only identified historic resource 
in Upper Patuxent known to be home of a Methodist Protestant minister and circuit rider, and his 
farmstead illustrates that circuit riders had to supplement their income with farming to support 
themselves.  In addition, Alfred Baker preached locally, at Brown's Chapel, the predecessor of 
today Montgomery United Methodist Church in Clagettsville.   Hence, in accordance with:  
Criteria 1a, the Alfred Baker House has character, interest, and value as part of the Methodist 
heritage and cultural characteristics of Montgomery County and Maryland; Criteria 1c, is 
identified with a person or group of persons (Methodist Protestant ministers, Methodist circuit 
riders) who influenced society; and Criteria 1d, exemplifies the Methodist/agricultural/extended 
family cultural, social, and historic heritage of Montgomery County and its Upper Patuxent 
communities.    
 
Subsequent to the HPC meeting of January 20, 2010, staff conducted additional research on the 
property at the Maryland State Archives.  Equity Case 618/622 contained a survey plat made in 
1886 showing the property of Alfred Baker, deceased (1885).1  This survey plat is shown on the 
subsequent page, along with a current map. 
  

                                                            
1 Montgomery County Equity Case 618, combined with Equity Case 622, T415‐84, Equity Papers, Box 87, Location 
3/55/8/82, Maryland State Archives. 
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1886 SURVEY PLAT – 15/4 ALFRED BAKER PROPERTIES, PER MC EQUITY CASE 618

Note  location of 15/4 Alfred Baker House to west of Fahrney Branch, along Kemptown Road, on  The Widow’s Dower.  The 
house is pictured as a 3‐bay, side‐gabled building, with two end chimneys.  The Widow’s Dower is the 12‐acre and 4‐acre lots 
and right‐of way; the balance of Alfred Baker’s property  is the 83‐acre tract to the right.   

 
2010 BASE MAP ‐‐ 15/4 ALFRED BAKER PROPERTIES AS OF 1886

Note  location of 15/4 Alfred Baker House to west of Fahrney, along Kemptown Road  
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15/117 Mt. Lebanon School and Site of Mt. Lebanon Methodist Episcopal Church 
 
Chairman Rotenstein noted that the resource does not retain sufficient architectural integrity to 
be designated.  As noted in the discussion in the subsequent section on architectural integrity, a 
property may have lost some of its features but still be historic if the overall building still 
conveys its significance due to other aspects of integrity such as location, setting, and historical 
association.  Mt. Lebanon School was recommended by staff for designation based on criteria 1a, 
1d, and 2a, and staff feels its front-gabled form (typical for non-residential buildings in the upper 
county) and overall massing is sufficient to convey its social and historical significance.  As 
noted in the prior staff report, this site was the center of community life for over a century and 
the building is the only remaining one-room school house (now dwelling house) in the Upper 
Patuxent area.  There are very few individually designated one-room school houses in the 
county.  Staff recommends designation.  

HISTORIC DISTRICTS 

Two historic districts are being considered for designation:  Clagettsville and Etchison.  The 
criteria for designation and historic context for these historic districts is contained in the Draft 
Amendment and the staff report of January 13, 2010.  At the January 20 worksession, the 
Commission expressed concerns regarding issues of integrity, criteria, and boundaries.  A 
general discussion of integrity and boundary consideration follows, succeeded by specific 
considerations for each district.  

Architectural Integrity: 

This issue is a thorny one and comes up frequently in historic preservation discussions.  The 
National Park Service has good information on architectural integrity in terms of preservation 
(http://www.nps.gov/history/NR/publications/bulletins/nrb15/nrb15_8.htm):  

Integrity is the ability of a property to convey its significance…The evaluation of 
integrity is sometimes a subjective judgment, but it must always be grounded in an 
understanding of a property's physical features and how they relate to its significance.  

Historic properties either retain integrity (this is, convey their significance) or they do 
not. Within the concept of integrity, the National Register criteria2 recognize seven 
aspects or qualities that, in various combinations, define integrity.  

To retain historic integrity a property will always possess several, and usually most, of 
the aspects. The retention of specific aspects of integrity is paramount for a property to 

                                                            
2National Park Service guidance is informative in the evaluation of the resources under consideration. Note: the 
resources under consideration are being evaluated using Montgomery County’s designation criteria, as established in 
section 24A-3 of the Count Code and not the federal criteria established for National Register designation. 
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convey its significance. Determining which of these aspects are most important to a 
particular property requires knowing why, where, and when the property is significant. 

SEVEN ASPECTS OF INTEGRITY: To retain integrity, a property must include several, 
if not most, of these aspects. 

• Location  
• Design  
• Setting  
• Materials  
• Workmanship  
• Feeling  
• Association  

What this means is that a property may have lost some features – for example, replaced windows 
– but may still be historic if the overall building still conveys it significance due to other aspects 
of integrity, such as location, setting, historical association, etc. 

Even after a building is designated on the Master Plan for Historic Preservation, the Historic 
Preservation Commission can approve many kinds of changes to the building – as long these 
changes do not impede the ability of the building to convey its significance. 

Historic District vs. Individually Designated Sites: 

Again, staff feels that important information on this topic is to be found on the National Park 
Service website.  The NPS defines a historic district this way: 
(http://www.nps.gov/nr/publications/bulletins/nrb15/NRB15_4.HTM#district) 

A district possesses a significant concentration, linkage, or continuity of sites, buildings, 
structures, or objects united historically or aesthetically by plan or physical development.  

A district derives its importance from being a unified entity, even though it is often 
composed of a wide variety of resources. The identity of a district results from the 
interrelationship of its resources, which can convey a visual sense of the overall historic 
environment or be an arrangement of historically or functionally related properties. For 
example, a district can reflect one principal activity, such as a mill or a ranch, or it can 
encompass several interrelated activities, such as an area that includes industrial, 
residential, or commercial buildings, sites, structures, or objects. A district can also be a 
grouping of archeological sites related primarily by their common components; these 
types of districts often will not visually represent a specific historic environment. 

Within a historic district, one may find buildings of outstanding historic significance and others 
which may be less significant, but which contribute to the overall character of the district.  Many 
districts also include a small number of non-contributing or out-of-period buildings which are 
included within the boundaries of an otherwise cohesive district. 
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An individually-designated historic site must be significant in its own right and should “stand 
alone” in meeting the Historic Preservation Ordinance criteria for designation. 

In terms of how the Historic Preservation Ordinance is applied to a historic district versus an 
individually-designated site, the only difference is language in section 24A-8(d) of the ordinance 
that states:  

In the case of an application for work on an historic resource located within an historic 
district, the commission shall be lenient in its judgment of plans for structures of little 
historical or design significance or for plans involving new construction, unless such 
plans would seriously impair the historic or architectural value of surrounding historic 
resources or would impair the character of the historic district. 

Boundaries: 

A basis for determining boundaries for a historic district typically begins with the original plat 
for the community.  In the case of both Clagettsville and Etchison, however, the communities are 
organic and grew over time.  For unplatted communities, a district must include the greatest 
concentration of contributing resources with highest level of integrity, in order to best convey the 
significance of the district.  In determining appropriate boundaries for the Clagettsville and 
Etchison districts, community features to consider include religious resources (church, church 
hall, parsonage, cemetery), commercial resources (stores, blacksmiths, auto service station), and 
residential resources (vernacular architecture, kinship housing, merchant housing), and farmland 
context. 

Clagettsville Historic District 

Clagettsville was listed on the Locational Atlas and Index of Historic Sites in 1976.   Park 
Historian Michael F Dwyer submitted a Maryland Historical Trust Worksheet form on 
Clagettsville in October 1973.  In 1986, Catherine Crawford completed an MHT State Historic 
Sites Inventory Form on Clagettsville.  Both of these forms are referenced in staff’s recent 
inventory form on Clagettsville, MHT Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties Form, October 
2009.  These forms are available for review at mht.maryland.gov. 

In 1991, the Maryland Historical Trust reviewed Clagettsville for National Register eligibility, as 
part of Section 106 review for State Highway project MD 27.  Based on research conducted for 
the preparation of the 1973 andf 1986 inventory forms, MHT found that the historic district was 
not eligible for National Register designation.  It also found that the property at 28322 
Kemptown Road was eligible as an individual site for its “unusually fine example of Queen 
Anne architecture in a rural setting.” Staff was unaware of the 1991 MHT evaluation and did not 
reference these determinations in its previous staff report.  It bears emphasis that the MHT was 
evaluating the districts for National Register eligibility, using federal eligibility criteria rather 
than the County’s criteria for local designation, and based on research conducted between 20 and 
40 years ago.  The current review is for local designation, with the benefit of considerable 
additional research. Taking into consideration the additional information included in the October 
2009 MIHP form and applying Montgomery County’s designation criteria (Chapter 24A-3), staff 
finds that the district merits local designation.  
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Criteria 

Clagettsville meets the following criteria for designation: 1a 1d 2a 2d 

Historical Significance: 

-Clagettsville is a kinship community bound together by family and faith.  The primary family 
that settled the community is the Moxley family, and the majority of the structures were built on 
land subdivided from the Moxley’s Friendship farm. Moxleys descendants acquired parcels and 
built houses from 1880s to 1930s.   Additional extended family units residing in Clagettsville 
included generational members of the Warfield and Easton families.   

-Family ties have bound together generations of Moxleys. Indicative of the ongoing importance 
of Moxley family ties in Clagettsville is the tradition started over 50 years ago of a family 
reunion for descendants of the Clagettsville sons of Nehemiah Moxley.  Additional evidence of 
the importance of family ties is a descendant’s 450-page family history, Nehemiah Moxley: His 
Clagettsville Sons and Their Descendants.3  

-Montgomery ME Church was the focus of community spiritual life and social activities.  The 
church had a unifying force as most residents were active members of the congregation.   

-Service and communication center for local farmers from 1870s to 1930s:  blacksmith, post 
office, later automobile repair.  Larger than average size community for this area due to the 
confluence of large extended families and the opportunities for commerce at the intersection of 
two well-traveled routes: Ridge Road and Kemptown Road 

Architectural Significance:  

-Largest collection of representative vernacular housing types in the northern quadrant of the 
county.  

-Dual entrance houses represent Germanic traditions of the upcounty area, and also continuance 
of family traditions from the Friendship Farm house through 19th century.   

-Vernacular Gothic houses with center cross gable roofs, and peaked windows, are typical of 
upcounty area, are found here in greatest concentration of the county. Turned posts of similar 
design on more than one house are indicative of the close-knit nature of the community where a 
builder’s craft visually ties buildings together. 

-Noteworthy Queen Anne influenced houses are 28322 Kemptown Road featuring a three-story 
tower with conical roof, and 28408 Kemptown Road, with multi-colored Queen Anne sash 
windows and Doric columns. 

Integrity 

Staff finds that Clagettsville has a high level of integrity overall. The attached chart includes an 
assessment of integrity.  The majority of the resources have a high level of integrity, retaining at 
least six of the seven factors discussed above.  Many of the houses have replacement windows or 
                                                            
3 Allie May Moxley Buxton, 1989. 
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siding, yet as a group, they continue to convey the historic kinship and vernacular architectural 
character of this community. 

Boundaries 

Staff prepared two boundary options for Clagettsville. Staff finds that both options meet the 
criteria cited above.  

Option 1 is the largest proposed boundary that includes crossroads of Kemptown and Ridge 
Roads with the Clagett and Warfield building complexes.  This intersection was the origin of the 
Clagettsville community, and includes the church, the store site and the Church hall site. This 
option also includes the structures along Ridge Road including Moxley stores, merchant houses, 
Moxley family houses, vernacular and folk housing, as well as ranch houses that continue the 
century old building pattern of small scale houses on one-acre lots facing Kemptown Road.   

   CLAGETTSVILLE OPTION 1 
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Option 2 centers on the concentration of vernacular houses on Kemptown Road and excludes the 
crossroads buildings.  It includes Moxley family houses, stores, and merchant houses.   This 
option includes structures on both sides of Kemptown Road, which makes good preservation 
planning sense.  The church, a landmark at Kemptown and Ridge Roads, might be considered an 
individual site with this option.  

 CLAGETTSVILLE OPTION 2 

 

Etchison Historic District 

Like Clagettsville, Etchison was identified on the Locational Atlas and Index of Historic Sites in 
1976.  Michael Dwyer completed a Maryland Historical Trust State Historic Property Inventory 
Form in 1976, which Catherine Crawford supplemented in 1986 (see mht.maryland.gov).  Ms 
Crawford recommended a discontiguous district, discussed further below.  

Criteria 

The Etchison Historic District meets criteria:  1a, 1d, 2a, 2d. 

Historical Significance: 

- Etchison is highly representative of a crossroads community that provided services for local 
residents and travelers. Marcellus Etchison established a store, blacksmith shop and residence at 
the crossroads of two early roads: Damascus Road and Laytonsville Road.  Originally called 
Ragtown, the community received its name when Marcellus Etchison became postmaster for 
post office that opened 1884.  The store was later operated for 70 years by the Hawkins family. 

-Etchison grew to become a kinship community bound together by family and faith.  
Descendants of Moore family, who operated the Luther Moore farm, built houses and settled in 
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Etchison as well.   Although named after the initial postmaster, the community was populated 
largely by members of the Hawkins and Moore families. 

-The sons of Thomas and Susan Hawkins were founders and instrumental operators of key 
community institutions, including the church, commercial enterprise, and school.  Family ties 
bound generations of Hawkins family together.   Indicative of the ongoing persistence of 
Etchison family ties are the reunions held by descendants of Thomas and Susan Hawkins since 
1969.  A collection of photographs and memoirs retained by a family historian documents the 
Hawkins family’s Etchison ties (available online at 
http://www.montgomeryplanning.org/historic/UpperPatuxent). 

-Mt Tabor Church was historically a key institution in the Etchison community.  The children of 
Thomas and Susan Hawkins and their families were guiding forces of the Mt. Tabor Church.      
Dorsey Hawkins conveyed the original land for the church in 1881.  Family members played the 
organ, organized the Ladies Aid, and wrote the church history.  Hawkins family events, 
including anniversaries and reunions, were held at Mt Tabor Church. 

Architectural significance: 

-The district displays an unusual dichotomy between residents who built outmoded residences 
long after popularity waned on a regional scale, reflecting the persistence of tradition, and up-to-
date styles indicative of a consciousness of current trends in architectural design.  These choices 
on architectural expression were split in part along family lines, with the Moore family leaning 
towards traditional designs and the Etchison family preferring fashionable styles of the times.   

-Records indicate that the Hawkins family built or occupied eight houses and store buildings and 
the Moore family built or occupied four houses.   

Integrity 

As with Clagettsville, staff finds that Etchison has a high level of integrity overall. The attached 
chart includes an assessment of integrity.  The majority of the resources have a high level of 
integrity, retaining at least six of the seven factors discussed above.  Many of the houses have 
replacement windows or siding, yet as a group, they continue to convey the historic kinship and 
vernacular architectural character of this community. 

Boundaries 

Staff presented three options for an Etchison Historic District. Central to the district are the 
Etchison store complex at the intersection of Rts. 108 and 650 and related resources along both 
Laytonsville Road and Damascus Road.  Staff finds that each option meets the four criteria cited 
above.  
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Option 1 is the most inclusive.  It contains the church resources: original 1881 vernacular church, 
Gothic Revival church, cemetery, and parsonage.  Though the 1881 church building has been 
altered with additions, it is a significant early public building type that was once ubiquitous and 
is now rare. This option includes key Hawkins family houses:  the house of Dorsey Hawkins 
House, storekeeper and wheelwright who donated land for the church, and the retirement house 
of Ernest Hawkins, longtime storekeeper and pivotal community resident. This option also 
includes one of the Moore family houses (6920).  Staff recommends this option as best 
representing Etchison’s community life, and the spectrum of Hawkins and Moore family 
residences.  

 ETCHISON OPTION 1 

Option 2 excludes the church resources.  It includes the two 1937 Moore family bungalows.  
While this option does not include the church which played a key role in residents’ lives, it 
includes the store complex and several Moore and Hawkins family houses. 

 ETCHISON OPTION 2 
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Option 3 includes the store complex buildings: Nettie Hawkins Store, feed store, Etchison-
Hawkins House, Thomas Hawkins c1918 bungalow.  It also includes the log and frame Hipsley-
Hawkins House, and the Moore House across the road.  This option is similar to one 
recommended by Ms Crawford in her 1986 inventory form.  The difference is that the district 
recommended by Crawford was discontiguous, with the church included as a detached parcel. 
Staff does not recommend a discontiguous district or designation of the church as a separate site 
(see below).  Option 3 has merit for recognizing the historical and architectural significance of 
the store complex and the Hawkins and Moore families (see criteria above).  The HPC has 
received public submittals from residents who support Option 3. 

 ETCHISON OPTION 3 

In contrast to the option presented for Clagettsville, staff does not recommend the church as an 
individual resource.  The Mt Tabor Church does not have the level of integrity or rarity needed 
for an individual site, nor does it serve as a local landmark, like the Montgomery UM Church in 
Clagettsville. Neither does staff recommend designation of the Etchison Store as an individual 
site.  The crossroads intersection is significant to the context of the general store, storekeeper’s 
residence and feed store.  The owner of these buildings is opposed to their designation as an 
individual site.  Staff supports the inclusion of properties on both sides of Laytonsville Road if 
this option were to be pursued. 

CONCLUSION 

For the reasons noted in this staff report, incorporated documents, and previously presented information, 
staff recommends that 15 resources as specified in the Staff Draft Amendment to the Master Plan for 
Historic Preservation:  Upper Patuxent Resources be designated on the Master Plan for Historic 
Preservation,  three resources as specified in the Staff Draft Amendment be added to the Locational Atlas 
and Index of Historic Sites in Mongtomery County Maryland, and 16 resources as specified here and in 
the Staff Draft Amendment be removed from the Locational Atlas. 
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Style/Type Date  History 

Notes
Signif-
icanceT

Integrity* Integrity 
Notes

28201 Kemptown 
Road

Church 1904 Montgomery 
Methodist 
church, site of 
1871 chapel

1 2

1941 brick, 
1960 belfry

28230 Kemptown 
Road

Craftsman 
Bungalow

1930 Wm & Ilda 
Moxley

2 3
replacemt 
siding/wind
ows; 
addition

28235 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1961 Warfield‐
Rhodes

NC NC

28241 Kemptown 
Road

Colonial 
Revival

1948 Church 
Parsonage

2 2

replacemt 
windows

28305 Kemptown 
Road

Tudor Revival 1935 Winfred 
Perkinson

2 2

alum siding; 
replacemt 
windows

28309 Kemptown Craftsmn 1931 Harvey Moxley, 1 2

     Address

28309 Kemptown 
Road

Craftsmn 
Cottage

1931 Harvey Moxley, 
merchant

1 2

aluminum 
siding

28310 Kemptown 
Road

3Bay Side 
Gable

1904 William & 
Agnes Haines

1 2

vinyl siding
28314 Kemptown 

Road
Vernacular 1915 Harvey Moxley 

Store
1 3

porch 
enclosed

28315 Kemptown 
Road

Ranch 1974 Darnes Acres NC NC

28317 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1965 Darnes Acres NC NC



  Clagettsville Historic District

28318 Kemptown 
Road

Double Entry/ 
Ctr Cross 
Gable/ Gothic 
Revival

1915 Ira Dorsey 
Moxley; dual 
entry house

1 2

28319 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1963 Darnes Acres NC NC

28321 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1961 Darnes Acres NC NC

28322 Kemptown 
Road

Queen Anne 1903 Robt & Susan 
Moxley Hse

1 1

28323 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1960 Darnes Acres NC NC

28332 Kemptown 
Road

Ctr Cross 
Gable/ Gothic 
Revival

1915 Robt(Jake) & 
Orida Moxley 

2 3
chimney on 
front 
façade; vinyl 
siding

28403 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1959 Darnes Acres NC NC

28404 Kemptown 
Road

Double Entry/ 
Ctr Cross 
Gable/ Gothic 
Revival

c1884‐
1899

John Burdette; 
outbuildings

1 2 alum siding; 
replacemt 
windows

28405 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1957 Darnes Acres NC NC

28407 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1963 Darnes Acres NC NC
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  Clagettsville Historic District

28408 Kemptown 
Road

Queen Anne 1905 Lewis & Laura 
Easton; 6.32 
acres

1 2

vinyl siding
28409 Kemptown 

Road
Contmprary 1978 NC NC

28411 Kemptown 
Road

Col Rev 4 Sq 1905 Ollie & Tressie 
Moxley

1 1

28412 Kemptown 
Road

Cape Cod 1945 Esworthy‐
Allnutt

2 3

addition; 
siding

28416 Kemptown 
Road

Vernacular c1930 Wm Moxley 
Store

1 2

front door 
replaced

28419 Kemptown 
Road

Vernacular 1941 Kessler 3 3

Page 3 of 4

addition 
28420 Kemptown 

Road
Double Entry 1890 Albert Baker; 

Wm & Minnie 
Moxley 

1 2

 aluminum 
siding

28500 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1968 Kaetzel NC NC

28510 Kemptown 
Road

Craftsmn 
Bungalow

1928 Moxley‐Phebus 2 2

aluminum 
siding

28514 Kemptown 
Road

Minimal 
Traditnal

1953 NC NC
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  Clagettsville Historic District

28515 Kemptown 
Road

Ctr Cross 
Gable/ Gothic 
Revival

1896 Ollie & Leila 
Moxley; 
Outbldgs/ 9.9 
acres

1 2

siding
28520 Kemptown 

Road
Double Entry 1880‐

1890
Wm Alfred 
Smith

1 2

aluminum 
siding

9915 Moxley 
Road

Log House c1800‐
1860

Isaac Moxley 1 2

asphalt 
siding

28001 Ridge Road Greek Revival 1879 John Clagett 
Hse

1 2 aluminum 
siding; 
porch 
partial 
enclosure

28015 Ridge Road Double Entry c1880‐
1890

Wm Clagett 1 2

aluminum 
siding

28020 Ridge Road Ctr Cross 
Gable/ Gothic 
Revival

c1890‐
1915

Samuel D 
Warfield

1 2

aluminum 
siding

28030 Ridge Road Commercial c1935 
c1970s

Service Stations 
Vernie Moxley 
1935‐65

1/NC 2/NC

replacemt 
door

TSIGNIFICANCE KEY
1‐Historical: Key community bldg/resident. Signfiicant folk housing
2‐Lower level of significance, less representative bldg type. Moxley association
3‐Less architectural or historical significance
NC‐Non‐contributing

*INTEGRITY KEY
1‐Character defining features largely intact.  
2=Some features lost or enclosed. 
3=Much of character has been changed.   
NC=Historic character lost, or new construction
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Historic Name Style/ Type Integrity Notes Date
Signif-
icanceT Integrity*

6920 Damascus 
Rd

Walter & Ida 
Allnutt House

Vernacular 
Gothic Revival

Vinyl siding, 
replacement 
windows

c1912-17 1 2

7000 Damascus 
Rd

Nettie Hawkins 
Store (Etchison 
Store)

Vernacular Standing seam 
metal roof, wood 
drop siding, 1/1, 
6/6 sash

c1915 1 1

7004 Damascus 
Rd

Etchison-
Hawkins House

Victorian 
Vernacular 

drop-style alum 
siding, replacemt 
windows; orig door, 
porch, lancet 
window; summer 
kitchen

c1876-80 1 1

7010 Damascus 
Rd

Thomas F 
Hawkins house

Colonial Revival 
Bungalow

brick addition c1917-18 1 2

24101 Laytonsville 
Rd

Original church Vernacular, front 
gable

aluminum siding; 
additions; orig 1/1 
sash; standing seam 
metal roof; 1881 
datestone

1881 1 2

24101 Laytonsville 
Rd

Second church Gothic Revival aluminum siding; 
1956 additn, tower 
truncated; entry 
enclosed

1914 1 2

Address

enclosed 

24110 Laytonsville 
Rd

Claudia & 
Luther Howard 
House

Ranch two car garage 
addition

1963 3 2

24114 Laytonsville 
Rd

J Ernest and 
Ruth Hawkins 
House

Ranch garage addition, 
replacement 
windows

1961 1 2

24115 Laytonsville 
Rd

Mt Tabor 
Parsonage

Ranch 1965 2 1

24118 Laytonsville 
Rd

Bogley House Ranch carport enclosed ca 1958 3 2

24119 Laytonsville 
Rd

E Dorsey 
Hawkins House

Vernacular 3 
bay, side gable

aluminum siding c1880-82 1 2



   Etchison Historic District

Historic Name Style/ Type Integrity Notes Date
Signif-
icanceT Integrity*Address

24125 Laytonsville 
Rd

Marshall House Neocolonial 
Saltbox

1994 NC NC

24200 Laytonsville 
Rd

Gertrude 
Bowman & 
Norman Weber 
House

Colonial Revival 
Bungalow

aluminum 
siding; 
replacemt 
windows

c1937 1 2

24201 Laytonsville 
Rd

James & Willie 
B Gue House

Modified cape 
cod 

aluminum 
siding; major 
addition(s)

c1944 3 NC

24210 Laytonsville 
Rd

Tom and Jane 
King

Ranch c1960 2 1

24211 Laytonsville 
Rd

Virginia Weber 
& R. 
Washington 
Bowman 
House

Colonial Revival 
Bungalow

aluminum 
siding; replacmt 
porch

c1937 1 2

24220 Laytonsville 
Rd

Hipsley-
Hawkins House

Vernacular  aluminum 
siding; 
replacemt 
windows

mid-
1800s; 

c1912-23

1 2

24221 Laytonsville 
Rd

William and 
Pearl Moore

Vernacular 
Gothic Revival

vinyl siding; 
original windows

c1916 1 2
Rd Pearl Moore 

House
Gothic Revival original windows

24230 Laytonsville 
Rd

Hawkins Feed 
Store

Vernacular 
Moderne

replacement 
windows, doors

c1922-23/ 
c1947-48

1 2

TSIGNIFICANCE KEY
1‐Historical: Key community bldg/resident. Signfiicant folk housing
2‐Lower level of significance, less representative bldg type. Moxley association
3‐Less architectural or historical significance
NC‐Non‐contributing

*INTEGRITY KEY
1‐Character defining features largely intact.  
2=Some features lost or enclosed. 
3=Much of character has been changed.   
NC=Historic character lost, or new construction
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APPENDICES 

 
1-Response to Testimony on January 20, 2010 
 
2- Public Submittals made Subsequent to January 20, 2010 
and received by February 16, 2010 
 
3-USGS Location Maps 
 
 



























10/1 Friendship, 28110 Ridge Road 

 

APPENDIX 3



10/1 Friendship, 28110 Ridge Road 

 



15/4 Alfred Baker House, 28901 Kemptown Road 

 



15/5 Molesworth-Burdette Farm, 28600 Ridge Road 

 



15/8 Clagettsville Historic District 

 



15/13 Shipley-Mullinix Farm, 27001 Mullinix Mill Road 

 



15/16 Clagett-Brandenburg Farm and Tobacco House, 26360 Mullinix Mill Road 

 



15/17 Sarah Brandenburg Farm, 26301 Mullinix Mill Road 

 



15/17 Sarah Brandenburg Farm, 26301 Mullinix Mill Road 

 



15/27 Col. Lyde Griffith/Merhle Warfield Farm, 7307 Damascus Road 

 



15/28 Luther Moore Farm, 7201 Damascus Road 

 



15/29 Etchison Historic District 

 



15/71 Chrobot House, 24724 Hipsley Mill Road 



15/73 Basil Warfield Farm, 8201/8251 Damascus Road 

  



15/117 Mt Lebanon School/Site of Mt Lebanon ME Church, 26130 Mullinix Mill Road 
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